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101 Maple Drive North @ Hendersonville, TN 37075 Telephone (615) 822-1000 

www.hvilletn.org . Fax (615) 264-5327 

December 22,2014 

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Board, and Citizens of the City of 
Hendersonville: 

State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish within six months 
of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of audited financial statements. This repoi-t 
is published to fulfill that requirement by the extension date for the fiscal year ended June 
30,2014. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the 
infoimation contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive internal control 
framework that it has established for this puipose. Because the cost of internal controls 
should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than 
absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free from any material 
misstatements. 

Yeary, Howell & Associates, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unqualified 
("clean") opinion on the City of Hendersonville's financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2014. The independent auditor's repoi-t is located at the front of the financial 
section of this report. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent 
auditor's report and provides a nal-sative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic 
financial statements. MD&A complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in 
conjunction with it. 

Profile of the Government 

The City of Hendersonville is located in Sumner County, 22 miles northeast of downtown 
Nashville and 18 miles from Nashville's metropolitan aiipoi-t. Hendersonville offers a 
convenient location and exceptional scenery with over 26 miles of Old Hickory Lalte 
shoreline. Since its incoiporation in 1968, Hendersonville's population has increased 
from 116 to 54,068, with median family income well above average for the State of 
Tennessee. It is considered to be the 1 lth largest city in Tennessee by population. The 
City of Hendersonville is empowered to levy a propei-ty tax on both real and personal 
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properties located within its boundaries. It also is empowered by state statute to extend 
its corporate limits by annexation, which it has done from time to time. 

The City of Hendersonville was incorporated on June 11, 1968 under the Tennessee 
Uniform Commission City Manager form of government. On August 7, 1986, a vote by 
referendum changed the form of government to the Mayor-Aldermen. The Board of 
Mayor and Aldermen is comprised of thirteen members. The Mayor is elected at large 
and the Aldermen are elected on the basis of six ward districts. Members of the Board of 
Mayor and Aldermen elected subsequent to 1991 shall be elected to serve four (4) years. 
All department heads, the City Attoi-ney, City Judge, and City Recorder are appointed by 
the Board of Mayor and Aldermen. The Board of Mayor and Aldermen is responsible, 
among other things for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing committees, 
and establishing policies. 

The City of Hendersonville provides a full range of municipal services including police 
and fire protection; the construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other 
infrastructure; sanitation services; recreational and cultural activities; planning and 
zoning; and general administrative services. The Sumner County Board of Education 
provides educational services to students within the jurisdiction of the City of 
Hendersonville. The county school system is part of the Government of Sumner County. 
Nashville Electric Service, Cumberland Electric Service and Nashville Gas Company 
provide electrical and natural gas distribution to the City of Hendersonville. 

Sewage treatment is provided by the Hendersonville Utility District, which is not part of 
the govesnment of the City of Hendersonville. Water distribution is provided by the 
Hendersonville Utility District and the White House Utility District, which are not a past 
of the government of the City of Hendersonville. Financial data for these entities is not 
included in the financial statements of this repoi-t. However, audited financial statements 
of these entities are available upon request fiom their offices. The City contracts for solid 
waste disposal with a private contractor. 

Component units are entities for which the City of Hendersonville is considered to be 
financially accountable. Financial information for component units is reported in the 
government-wide financial statements. 

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen is required to adopt a final budget by no later than the 
close of the fiscal year. This annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of 
Hendersonville's financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by fund (i.e. 
general), department (i.e. police), and object code. Department heads are authorized to 
expend funds within total departmental appropriations. However, amendments to the 
budget that change departmental and/or total appropriations require the adoption of an 
ordinance by the Board of Mayor and Aldelmen. Budget transfers between departments 
must be approved by resolution and passed by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen. 



Local Economy 

The City of Hendersonville is a growing residential community having a close proximity 
to a major metropolitan city with increased growth in industrial, retail and commercial 
activity. The local economy is currently experiencing increased construction, planned 
developments and new retail business in the area. Hendersonville continues to pursue its 
efforts in promoting industrial, retail, commercial, and residential growth in fiscal year 
2014. The major positive initiatives taken by the City of Hendersonville are as follows: 

1. The mayoral assistant for Economic and Community Development works with 
the Industrial Development Board in serving the City's goals regarding 
development projects. The City is cul-sently experiencing continued growth in 
retail and office development with new development approved for construction. 

2. The City is designing the widening of Drakes Creek North at Stop 30 road and 
replacing the bridge at the intersection of Stop 30 and Drakes Creek. This will 
improve the road to the schools north of the City and to the new 1100 lot 
Durham Farm residential development. This project is estimated at about five 
million dollars. In addition to the Durham Farm development an additional 
1000 residential lots are under construction. 

3. The City continues to enhance its recreational program by adding a number of 
significant services and facilities to its Park System which include tennis 
courts, lacrosse fields, softball fields, soccer fields, and practice areas. The 
football, basketball and summer youth programs have been expanded to 
accommodate a larger volume of participants. Many fields are now lighted for 
nighttime activities. Portions of the pedestrian bicycle path project have been 
completed. An outdoor inline hockey rink and Frisbee-golf course are open as 
well as the Country Hills Golf course for public activities. Additional Park 
facilities and shelters were constructed which included the constsuction of a 
new dog park in FY 2014. 

4. The City is implementing a Citywide Traffic Signal Improvement Program at a 
cost of approximately one million four hundred thousand dollars. 

5. The City is currently working on several projects including sidewalk 
construction along Walton Ferry road and Luna Lane, a one million twenty five 
thousand dollar Sanders Ferry Bike Pedestrian Trail, a two hundred thousand 
dollar Community Development Block Grant to enhance lower income areas of 
the City and is spending one million five hundred thousand dollars on various 
drainage projects located thoughout the City. 

6. The 40,000 square foot Hendersonville Public library is open and available for 
the citizens to enjoy. 



7 .  The City is also working with the Tennessee Department of Transportation to 
constsuct the Freehill Road and Hwy 386 interchange at a cost of 
approximately five million dollars. 

8. The City qualified for $3,078,614 in federal economic stimulus funds (ARRA) 
and $7,558,456 in federal Urban-Surface Transportation Program (U-STP) 
funds for four infrastructure projects which includes Bridge and Street 
Widening of Indian Lake Boulevard at SR-386, Widening New Shackle Island 
Road, from Iris Drive to SR-386, reconstructing West Main Street from the 
Davidson County Line to New Shacltle Island Road and resurfacing Walton 
Ferry Road from West Main Street to Curtis Cross Roads. The West Main 
Street reconstruction and Walton Feny Road projects have been completed. 
The bridge and street widening of Indian Lalte Boulevard at SR-386 is near 
completion. The other projects are culrently in the right of way or construction 
phases. 

In addition to these initiatives, it appears the overall attitude of the government and the 
citizens of the City are more than ever concerned with economic growth and the 
measures necessary to enhance this growth. The City of Hendersonville is committed to 
building a future in which economic prosperity is balanced with a quality of life for all of 
its citizens. 

Long-Term Financial Planning 

The City has numerous capital projects culrently funded and under constmction. Several 
of these are: the Drakes Creek ecosystem restoration project, the Rockland Road 
improvement project, Pedestrian Bicycle Trail Phase 111, Sidewalks, Drakes Creek Stop 
30 widening, Walton FerryIMain street intersection right of way acquisition, traffic signal 
upgrades, drainage, lighting, paving projects and expansion of retail development along 
Indian Lake Boulevard. 

Financial Policies 

Annual budgets are adopted on an encumbrance basis, which is a basis not consistent 
with generally accepted accounting principals for all govelmnental funds except Debt 
Service and Capital Projects funds, Expenditures may not exceed appropriations 
authorized by the Mayor and Aldermen. The legal level of control is at the department 
level. The City utilizes departmental budgeting as authorized by the appropriating 
ordinances and follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in 
the financial statements. 

All bonds and notes of the City are to be retired from property tax revenues and are 
backed by the full faith and credit of the City, except the Revenue and Tax bonds and 
capital leases which are to be payable primarily from revenues of the golf course, and 



secondarily from the taxing power of the City in the event of a deficiency in golf course 
revenues. 

Any single capital purchase in excess of $2,500 that was not included in the line item 
budget estimates must be approved by resolution by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen 
before the purchase is obligated. The Mayor and Finance Director are authorized to 
expend appropriated funds to pay the City's debts, to issue refunds for overpayments of 
taxes and fees, and to transfer funds between banking accounts. 

Balances at June 30 of the cunent fiscal year for commitments made in prior fiscal years 
for capital or special projects are appropriated from fund balances accumulated in prior 
fiscal years. 

Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to City of 
Hendersonville for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2013. This was the thil-ty first consecutive year that the government has 
achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a 
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive 
annual financial repol-t. This repol-t must satisfy both generally accepted accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our 
current comprehensive financial repol-t continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement 
Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility 
for another certificate. 

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and 
dedicated services of Dana Swinea, Assistant Finance Director and the entire staff of the 
finance department. I would like to express my appreciation to all members of the 
department who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. Credit also 
must be given to the Board of Mayor and Aldermen for their unfailing support for 
maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the management of the City of 
Hendersonville's finances. The firm of Yeary, Howell & Associates, Certified Public 
Accountants was most helpful in reviewing the interpretations of financial presentation 
and disclosure requirements. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Ron Minniclts 
Finance Director 
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Independent Auditor's Report 
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Board of Mayor and Aldermen 
City of Hendersonville, Tennessee 
Hendersonville, Tennessee 

Report on Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Hendersonville, Tennessee (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30,2014, and the related notes to the financial 
statements which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Res onsibility P Our responsibi ity is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller of the United States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control, relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each 
major hnd,  and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Hendersonville, Tennessee as of June 30, 
2014, and the respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective 
budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the Solid Waste Fund for the year then ended, in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Change in Accounting Principle 
As discussed in Note 14 to the financial statements, in 20 14, the City adopted new accounting guidance, Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans; an Anze~zd~nent ofGASB 
Stateinerzt No. 25. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters. 



Board of Mayor and Aldermen 
City of Hendersonville, Tennessee 
Hendersonville, Tennessee 

Other Matters 

Required Szlppletlzer~taly I~lfolwzatio~ 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
analysis and the required supplemental information, pages 3 through 13 and 48, be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other I~lfornzatio~~ 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
City of Hendersonville's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor 
fund statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
presented for the purpose of additional analysis as required by the US Office of Management and Budget Circular A- 
133, Audits of State and Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules, including the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica. In our opinion, the combining 
and individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditingprocedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Goverrrnzental Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Goven~rlzent Atiditirzg Stafzctnrds, we have also issued our report dated December 5,2014 on our 
consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govenll~zent Auditing Standards in considering the City of 
Hendersonville's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

/ 
December 5,2014 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the City of Hendersonville, Tennessee (the City) we offer readers of the City's 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the 
fiscal year ended June 30,2014. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in 
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which 
can be found on pages i-v of this report. 

Financial Highlights: 

The assets of the City of Hendersonville exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal 
year by $68,798,118 (net position). Of this amount, $4,338,064 (unrestricted net position) may be 
used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

The government's total net position decreased by $701,269. This negative change is attributable to 
a decrease in net investment in capital grants and developer contributions within the Streets and 
Public Works department. 

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental hnds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $12,969,051, an increase of $213,144 in comparison to the prior year as restated. 
Approximately $1,030,329 of that total is available for spending at the government's discretion 
(unassigned fund balance). 

At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $1,030,329 
or 3.46% of the total general fund expenditures. 

The City's total debt decreased by $820,185 or (6.93%) during the current fiscal year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements: 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Hendersonville's 
basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) 
government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial 
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic 
financial statements. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed 
to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private- 
sector business. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets, deferred inflows of 
resources, and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 



The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Hendersonville include 
general government, personnel, central services, finance, parks, codes, planning, police, fire, 
contributions, disposal service, program cost, streets and public works. The business-type activities 
of the City include its golf course operations. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Hendersonville itself 
(known as the primary government), but also legally separate component units for which the City is 
financially accountable. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from 
the financial information presented for the primary government itself. The component units reported 
include the Hendersonville Arts Council, Beautiful Hendersonville, Inc., and the Hendersonville 
Industrial Development Board. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14-15 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. A Fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated from specific activities or objectives. The City of 
Hendersonville, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be 
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 

@over.nnzental Furzds. Governmental Funds are funds used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, government fund financial statements 
focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement 
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 



The City maintains six individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances for the general fund, solid waste, and capital projects fund which are 
considered to be major funds. Data from the other three governmental funds are combined into a 
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental 
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The City of Hendersonville adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary 
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this 
budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 16-19 of this report. 

Pro-prietarv Funds. The City of Hendersonville maintains only one type of proprietary fund. An 
enterprise fund is used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. The City uses an enterprise fund to account for its golf 
course operations. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26-28 of this report. 

Fidzlciar.~ Fzrrzds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties 
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial 
statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of 
Hendersonville's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for 
proprietary funds. 

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 29 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 30-47 of this report. 

Other Information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor 
governmental funds are presented immediately following the notes to financial statements. 
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 49-52 of this 
report. 



Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the City of Hendersonville, assets exceeded liabilities and deferred inflow of 
resources by $68,798,118 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 

By far the largest portion of the City's net position (89.6%) reflects its investment in capital assets 
(e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure); less any related debt used to 
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to 
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

City of Hendersonville's Net Position 

Govelni~lental Activities Business-type Activities 

2014 2013$ 2014 - 2013 - 2014 2013' 

Cui~ent and other assets $ 29,158,664 $ 27,838,332 $ 137,581 $ 123,821 $ 29,296,245 $ 27,962,153 
Capital assets 66,684,201 68,230,918 1,191,349 1,422,028 67,875,550 69,652,946 

Total assets 95,842,865 96,069,250 1,328,930 1,545,849 97,171,795 97,615,099 

Long-term liabilities outstanding l3,840,590 14,697,644 13,840,590 14,697,644 
Other liabilities 4,079,162 3,331,134 37,019 31,981 4,116,181 3,363,115 
Defei~ed illflows of resources 10,416,906 10,054,953 10,416,906 10,054,953 

Total liabilities and inflows 
of resources 28,336,658 28,083,731 37,019 31,981 28,373,677 28,115,712 

Net position: 
Net investment capital assets 60,427,388 59,308,345 1,191,349 1,422,028 61,618,737 60,730,373 

Restricted 2,841,317 4,004,309 2,841,317 4,004,309 
Unrestricted 4,237,502 4,672,865 100,562 91,840 4,338,064 4,764,705 

Totalnetposition $ 67,506,207 $ 67,985,519 $ 1,291,911 $ 1,513,868 $ 68,798,118 $ 69,499,387 

*As restated 

An additional portion of the City's net position (4.1%) represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position 
($4,338,064) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three 
categories of net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate 
governmental and business-type activities. The same situation held true for the prior year. 

The government's net position decreased by $1,739,198 during the current fiscal year. This decrease 
is 2.5% of total net position. This decrease represents mostly a decrease in restricted assets and a 
decrease in capital assets. 



Governmental Activities 

Governmental activities decreased the City's net position by $479,3 12, thereby accounting for .7% 
of the total decrease in the net position of the City. The key factor for this decrease was due to a 
decrease in capital grants and contributions primarily in the Streets and Public Works departments. 

City of Hendersonville's Changes in Net Position 
Governmental Activities Busmess -type Activities 
2014 20I3' 2014 2013 

Revenues 
Program revenues: 

Charges for smices  $ 6,035,052 $ 5,585,968 $ 807,896 $ 773,593 
Operafing grants and contniudons 1:981,342 1,717,007 
Capital pants and contributions 2,690,020 14,603,705 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 9,796,287 10,466,430 
Sales taxes 10,020,450 9,358299 - 
Other locally assessed taxes 3,863,004 3,012,631 
Other State shared taxes 4,524,308 4,345,269 - 
Other 79,040 102,318 186 333 

Total revenues 
Expenses: 

General go\lelment 
Personnel 
Central senices 
Finance 
Parks 
Codes 
Planning 
Police 
Fire 
Contributions 
Disposal senice 
Program costs 
Streets and Public Works 
Interest expense on long-term debt 
Golf Course 

Total expenses 393 13,692 37,543,624 985,162 968,630 40,498,854 38,s 12,254 

Increase (decrease) in net position before 
transfers and special iten1 (524,189) 11,448,003 (177,080) (194,704) (701269) 11,453299 

Transfers 44,877 (173,640) (44,877) 173,640 

Increase (decrease) in net position (479,3 12) 11,474,363 (221,957) (21,064) (701,269) 11,453,299 

Net position, beginning of year - as restated 67,985,519 56,511,156 1,513,868 1,534,932 69,499,387 58,MZ088 

Net position, end of year $67,506,207 $67,985,519 $1291,911 $1,513,868 $68,798,118 $69,499,387 

*As restated 

For the most part, increases in expenses closely paralleled inflation and growth in the demand for 
services. 



Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities 

,+ P '$9 .& +Q~ 

o<=@ Gob e. + 8 90 
b0 

W Expenses Program Revenues 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 

Intergovenunental 
Revenues 

11.59% 

Investment 
Earnings 

7\ Franchie Taxes / 0.06% 

Transfers, 
0.11% A 

Other Locally Assessed/ 
Taxes 

,-Operating Grants and 
Contributions 

5.08% 

Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

Sales Taxes- 
25.67% 

0.14% I 
Gain on sale of assets 

.Property Taxes 
25.10% 



Expenses and Program Revenues 
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance- 
related legal requirements. 

Goveinmental Funds 
The focus of the City of Hendersonville's governmental funds is to provide information on near- 
term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing 
the City's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful 
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $12,969,051, an increase of $213,144 in comparison with the prior year as 
restated. Approximately 7.9% of this total amount ($1,030,329) constitutes unassigned fund 
balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion. The remainder of the fund 
balance ($1 1,938,722) indicates that it is not available for new spending because it has been either 
1) restricted for departmental obligations in the amount of ($991,591), 2) restricted to provide for 
capital projects ($4,242,382) 3) designated nonspendable to provide for prepaid items ($73,510), 4) 
committed to provide for designated departmental projects ($267,175), 5) assigned for specific 
projects regarding other governmental funds ($1,603,865) 6) assigned for departmental obligations 
in the amount of ($1,164,848) 7) and assigned for subsequent year budget in the amount of 
($3,595,35 1). 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $1,030,329, while total fund balance reached 
$7,122,804. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both 
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance 
represents 3.46% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 23.9% of 
that same amount. 

The fund balance of the City's general fund decreased by $601,864 during the current fiscal year. 
The key factor in this decrease was primarily due to capital improvements budgeted. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, total fund balance of the solid waste fund was zero, which is 
unchanged from the prior fiscal year. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, total fund balance of the capital projects fund was $4,242,382. 
The increase in total fund balance from the prior fiscal year was $569,717 due to the issuance of 
$1,250,000 in new debt. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance of the state street aid fund (nonmajor 
governmental fund) was $1,434,859. The increase in total fund balance from the prior fiscal year as 
restated was $236,432. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, total fund balance of the dsug fund (nonmajor governmental 
fund) was $169,006. The increase in total fund balance from the prior fiscal year was $8,859. 



Proprietary Funds 
The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statement, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net position of the Golf Course Fund at the end of the year amounted to $100,562. The 
decrease in total net position of the Golf Course Fund amounted to $221,957 primarily related to 
depreciation. Factors concerning the finances of this fund have already been addressed in the 
discussion of the City's business-type activities. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The difference between the original budget and the final amended budget was an overall increase in 
appropriations by $70,871 and can be briefly summarized as follows: 

o The Parks department budget was amended by ($15,000) for construction of a dog 
park in Memorial park. 

o The Police department budget was amended ($55,871) which appropriated $50,052 
regarding a State of Tennessee Department of Transportation governor's highway 
safety grant and appropriated $5,8 19 to purchase bulletproof vests. 

Total general fund revenues for FY 2013-2014 were over budgeted revenues by $1,390,574 or 
4.16%. Total expenditures for FY 2013-2014 were under budgeted expenditures $4,986,026 or 
14.5% resulting in a positive variance with final budget in the amount of $3,595,452. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 
The City of Hendersonville's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities at June 30, 2014, amounts to $67,875,550 (net of accumulated depreciation). This 
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, park 
facilities, roads, highways and bridges. The total decrease in the City's investment in capital assets 
for the current fiscal year was 2.5% (a 2.3% decrease for governmental activities and a 16.2% 
decrease for business-type activities). 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

$ 899,671 in donated streets from developers. 

$1,860,02 1 in new machinery and equipment purchases. 

$5,432,714 reduction in construction in progress projects, the majority of which were added 
to street projects, Park improvements, and pedestrianhike path construction that were 
completed. 

$7,548,522 reclassified from assets not being depreciated to assets being depreciated in 
regard to the Hendersonville library. 
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City of Hendersonvilleis Captial Assets 

Land $ 4,632,797 $ 4,632,797 
Btddings and Improvements 17,008,529 16,870,529 

Improvements other than buildings 2,822,614 2,796,618 
Machinery and Equipment 13,020,168 1 1,203,45 1 
Construction in progress 1,919,390 6,598,303 

Infrastructure 99,377,152 93,014,767 

Less accutdated depreciation (72,126,449) (69915,547) 
Net Capital Assets $66.684,201 $68,230,918 

Business-type Activities Total 
2014 2013 2014 2O13* 

*As restated 

Additional information on the City of Hendersonville's capital assets can be found in note 3 on page 
36 of this report. 

Long -Term Debt 
At the end of the current year, the City of Hendersonville had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$1 1,010,129, all of which is backed by the full faith and credit of the government. The enterprise 
fund had no bonded debt outstanding. 

City of Hendersonville's Outstanding Debt 

Governmental Activities Business-type Achidcs 

2014 2013 20t4 2013 20t4 2013 

General obligation bonds $ - $ $ $  - $ 
Notes payable 10,023,000 10,843,185 10,023,000 10,843,185 

Revenue and tax bonds 
Obligation to school system 987,129 987,129 987,129 987,129 

Total '$11,010,129 $11,830,314 '$ - '$ - $11,010,129 $11,830,314 

The City of Hendersonville's total debt decreased by $820,185 (6.9%) during the current fiscal year. 
On February 27, 2014 Standard & Poors Rating Services raised the City of Hendersonville rating 
from AA to AA+ based on their local GO criteria published September 12,2013. 

State statutes impose no debt limit on the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity 
may issue. 

Additional information on the City of Hendersonville's long term debt can be found in note 7 on 
pages 39-40 of this report. 



Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates 

The unemployment rate for the City of Hendersonville is currently 5.5%, which is lower than last 
year's rate of 6.8%. This compares to the state's average unemployment rate of 6.6% and the 
national average rate of 6.1 %. 

In the 2014-2015 budget, General fbnd revenues and transfers in are budgeted to increase by 2.68% 
from the 2013-2014 budget year. The City's budget has benefited by an expanding commercial and 
retail base producing a steady increase in local sales tax receipts, building permits, and business 
taxes. Economic conditions experienced during the 2013-2014 budget year still required a 
conservative approach to the 2014-2015 budget. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for the 2014-2015 fiscal year. 

During the current fiscal year, total fund balance in the general fund decreased to $7,122,804. The 
City has appropriated $3,595,351 of this amount for spending in the 2014-2015 fiscal year budget. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Hendersonville 
Tennessee's finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions 
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to: 

Ron Minnicks, Finance Director 

City of Hendersonville 

101 Maple Drive North 

Hendersonville, TN 37075 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Statenlent of Net Position 

June 30,201 4 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables (net): 

Propeny taxes 
Otlier taxes 
Disposal fees 
Due froin other governments 
Accounts receivable 

Inventories 
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents 

Cash -capital note proceeds 
Deposit for capital construction - State of Tennessee 

Prepaid items 
Deposits 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
Land and construction in progress - nondepreciable 

Total Assets 

Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 
Unearned revenue 
Long-term liabilities due within one year 
Long-term liabilities due in more than one yea1 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflo\\~s of Resources 
Deferred revenue 

Net Position 
Net investnient in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Street maintenance 
Public works 
Law enforcement 
Solid waste disposal 
Capital projects 

Unrestricted 
Total Net Position 

Primary Goverrirnent 
Governmental Business 

Total Component units 
Primary Arts Beautiful Industrial 

Activities Activities Government Council Hendersonville Development 

$9,979,123 83,060 10,062,183 26,535 15,591 169,592 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY O F  HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Net Exuenses) Revenue and ~. , 
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position 

Operating Capital Primary Government Component Un~ts  
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type Arts Beautiful Industrial 

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities --- Total Council Hendersonville Development Primary Government: 
Governmental Activities: 
General government 
Personnel 
Cenhal services 
Finance 
Parks 
Codes 
Planning 
Police 
Fire 
Contributions 
Disposal service 
Program cost 
Sheets and public works 

Interest on debt 
Total Government Activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Golf Course 

Total Business-type Activities 

Total Primary Government 

Component Units: 
Arts Council 
Beautiful Hendersonville 
Industrial Development Board 

General Revenues: 
Property taxes 
In lieu taxes 
Sales taxes 
Wholesale beer t m  
Wholesale liquor tax 
Business tax 
Franchise taxes 
Unrestricted state shared taxes: 

State shared sales ~ L K  

State shared income tax 
State shared beer tax 
State shared alcoholic beverage tau 
Other unrestricted other state shared taxes 

Unrestricted investment earnings 
Other 
Gain on sale of assets 

Transfers 
Total general revenues 

Change in net position 
Net position -beginning of year, as restated 
Net position - end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 



CITY O F  HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Balalice Sheet 
Goverr~nlel~tal Funds 

June 30,2014 

Solid Capital Debt Other Total 
General Waste Projects Service Govem~iiental Goven~~nental 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds 

Cash 
Receivables (net) 

Property taxes 
Other taxes 
Disposals fees 
Due fro111 other governments 

Deposit - State of Telutesse 
Prepaid itelus 
Due from other funds 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Accoui~ts payable 
Accrued costs 
Due to other funds 
Unearned revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Unavailable revenues 

Fund Balance: 
Nonspendable: 

Prepaid itelits 
Restricted for: 

Public works 
Street ~naintenance 
Law enforce~nent 
Parks capital projects 
Streets capital projects 

Committed to: 
Public works 
Street nlainte~~ance 

Assigned to: 
Retiree benefits 
General govennnent 
Public works 
Law enforcement 
Parks 
Subsequent year budget 

Unassigned 

Total F~und Balances 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balance 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 
of Governmental Activities 

June 30,2014 

Amounts reported for fund balance - total governn~ental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
position are different because: 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, used in governmental 
activities are not financial resources and , therefore, are not reported 
in the funds. 

Other long-tern1 assets are not available to pay for current-period 
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the ftmds 

State shared revenue and local option sales tax receivable 
Property tax receivable, net of allowance of doubtfill accounts 
Disposal fees receivable, net of allowance for doubtfi~l accounts 

In the statement of activities, interest is accn~ed on outstanding 
bonds, wvl~ereas in governmental funds, interest expenditures are 
reported ~vl~ehen due. 

Long-tenn liabilities, including bonds payable are not due and payable 
in the current period and therefore are not recorded in the funds. 

Governmental bonds and notes payable 
Note premiums 
Obligation to county school syste~ii 
Other poste~nployn~ent benefits 
Compensated absences 

Net position of governmental activities 

See acconipanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HENDERSON\TLLE, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenoes, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Governmental Funds 

Revenues 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Fines and fees 
Licenses and perniits 
Charges for services 
Uses of nloney and property 
Miscella~leous 

Total Revenue 

Expenditures 
Current: 
General govemnlent 
Personnel 
Central services 
Finance 
Parks 
Codes 
Planning 
Public ~vorks 
Police 
Fire 
Contributions 
Disposal service 
Progra~n cost 
Streets 

Debt service 
Capital Outlay 

Total Expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) revenues 

over expenditi~res 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Debt issuance 
Transfer from other funds 
Transfer to other fi~nds 

Total Other Financing Soorces (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year, as restated 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Solid Capital Debt Other Total 
Waste Projects Service Governmental Gover~unental 

General Fund ~ i n d  Fund Ftuids Funds 
$22,914.476 22,914,476 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Amounts reported for net change in fund balance - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense 
in the current period: 
Cost of assets acquired 
Depreciation expense 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current 
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds: 
Property taxes 
Local option sales tax 
Business taxes 
State shared revenues 
Disposal Fees 
Contributed capital assets 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental 
funds, but reduces long-term liabilities for governniental activities. 

Interest is accrued on the outstanding bonds in the governmental activities, 
whereas in the governmental funds, an interest espenditure is reported 
when due: 

Change in accrued interest on debt 

Long-term debt issuance provide current financial resouces to governmental funds, 
but the issuance of debt increases long-term obligations for governlnental 
activities. 

Governmental funds report the effects of note premiums discounts, 
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts 
are deferred and amortized for governmental activities: 

Amortization of note premiums 

Expenses reported for governmental activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and are not reported as expenditures in the 
governmental funds: 

Compensated absences 
Other postelnpioyment benefits 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Encumbrances and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual 

General Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30.2014 

Revenues 
Local Taxes: 

Real & personal property 
Payments in lieu of property taxes 
Local sales taxes 
Wholesale beer 
Wholesale liquor 
Business taxes 

Total Local Taxes 
Intergovernmental: 

State sales tax 
State income tax 
State beer tax 
State alcoholic beverage tax 
Statelcity streets & transp. 
State fire supplement 
State police supplement 
Other state revenue allocation 
County 
Corp of Engineers 
Grants 

Total Intergovernmental 
Fines and Penalties: 

City court and drug control 
Penalties 

Total Fines and Penalties 
Licenses and Permits: 

Building permits 
Franchise taxes 
Other permits 

Total Licenses & Permits 
Charges for Services: 

Recreational fees 
Interest 
Other Revenues: 

Contributions fiom others 
Sale of Assets 
Miscellaneous 

Total Other Revenues 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Original Final Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

Total Revenues 

Continued on next page 



CITY O F  HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Encumbrances and 
in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual 

Expenditures 
General Government: 

Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Travel and training 
Supplies 
Outside services 
Telephone 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 

Total General Government 
Personnel: 

Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Travel and training 
Supplies 
Telephone 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 

Total Personnel 
Central Se~vices: 

Salaries 
Benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Supplies 
Insurance 
Outside services 
Utilities 
Tax increment financing bond payment 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 
Total Central Services 

Finance 
Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Travel and training 
Supplies 
Outside services 
Utilities 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 

Total Finance: 

General Fund, Continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 
$279,883 279,883 

Actual 
Amounts 

276,961 
86,255 

1,115 
8,618 
9,443 
4,488 
3,065 

37,206 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

2,922 
5,248 

385 
7,382 
7,907 
2,512 

935 
13,794 

0 
41.085 

Continued on next page 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Statement o f  Revenues, Expenditures, Encumbrances and 
in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual 

Expenditures 
Parks: 

Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Outside Services 
Travel and training 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 

Total Parks 
Codes: 

Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Travel and training 
Supplies 
Outside Services 
Insurance 
Telephone 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 

Total Codes 
Planning: 

Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Travel and training 
Supplies 
Outside services 
Utilities 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 

Total Planning 
Streets and Public Works: 

Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Travel and training 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Outside services 
Other costs 
Street and drainage projects 
Capital outlay 

Total Public Works 
Continued on next page 

General Fund, Continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

85,370 
23,404 

106,228 
2,514 
1,975 

(50,130) 
2,857 
9,509 

252,487 
434.2 14 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Expenditures. Continued 
Police Department: 

Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Travel and training 
Supplies 
Outside services 
Telephone and utilities 
Investigations 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 

Total Police Department 
Fire Department: 

Salaries 
Employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Travel and training 
Supplies 
Telephone and utilities 
Outside services 
Other costs 
Capital outlay 

Total Fire Department 
Contributions: 

Senior Citizens 
Community Child Care 
HHS Stars 
Hendersonville Public Libraly 
Chamber of Commerce 
Samaratin 
Forward Sumner 
Health Department 
Sumner County Animal Shelter 
Component units 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Encumbrances and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual 

General Fund, Continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Other 
Total Contributions 

Total Expenditures and Encumbrances 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 
and Encumbrances (2,280,798) (958,291) 2,637,161 3,595,452 

Continued on next page 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Encumbrances and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual 

General Fund, Continued 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers In (Out): 

Debt service fund 
Solid waste fund 
Capital projects fund 
Golf fund 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 
Encumberances released 
Fund Balance. End of Year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Revenues 

Other: 
Disposal fees 

Total Revenues 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Encumbrances and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual 

Solid Waste Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Expenditures 
Tipping fees 
Disposal service 
Brush disposal and other 

Total Expenditures and Encumbrances 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures and Encumbrances (1,034,541) (1,034,541) (487,59 1) 546,950 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfer in 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



Assets 

Current Assets: 
Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Inventory 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Golf course improvements 
Equipment 

Total Propel-ty, Plant and Equipment 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Net Property, Plant and Equipment 

CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 

June 30,2014 
Golf 

Enterprise 
Fund 

Other 
Deposits 
Total Other Assets 
Total Noncurrent Assets 
Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Operating Revenues: 
Charges for sales and services 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Costs of sales 
Personal services 
Repairs and maintenance 
Supplies 
Gas 
Credit card charges 
Chemicals and fertilizer 
Utilities 
Depreciation 
Advertising and promotions 
Other 
Management services 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Golf 
Enterprise 

Fund 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Interest income 

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers 

Transfer Out 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning of Year 

Net Position- End of Year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 



CITY O F  HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Cash Flows Provided (Used) By Operating Activities: 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid for personnel services 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash paid for inter-fund services 
Cash paid for deposits 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
Operating Activities 

Cash Flows Provided (Used) By Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Cash transfer to other funds 

Cash Flows Provided (Used) By Capital Related Financing Activities: 
Purchase of equipment 

Cash Flows Provided (Used) By Investing Activities: 
Interest received on investments 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivale~its, End of Year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided bv Operations 

Operating income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 
net cash provided by operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 
(Increase) Decrease in: 

Accounts receivable 
Deposits 
Inventory 

Increase (Decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

There were no noncash investing, capital, or financing activities. 

Golf 
Enterprise 

Fund 
$807,696 
(361,630) 
(33 8,049) 

(40,000) 
(3,015) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Assets 

Cash 

CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

Training and Teen Activity Agency Fund 

June 30,2014 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Amounts due to agencies 
Total Liabilities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 3 0,20 14 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 

General Inforlnation 

The City of Hendersonville, Tennessee was incorporated June 11, 1968 and is located in Sumner County. The City 
operates under a Mayor-Aldermen for111 of government and provides the following services as authorized by its chaifer: 
public safety (police and fire protection), highways and streets, sanitation, health and social services, culture and 
recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general adlllillistrative sewices. 

The financial statements ofthe City have been prepared in accordallce with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America applicable to governmental units, as prescribed by the Govern~nelltal Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB). The following is a stunmary of the sigllificant accounting policies. 

Reporting Entity 

The accompanying finallcia1 state~nents present the gover~~ment and its colnpo~lent units, entities for which the 
government is co~lsidered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities are 
in substance, past of the goverllment's operatio~ls. Each discretely presented component unit is reposted in a separate 
column in the government-wide financial stateinents to emphasize it is legally separate from the government. The 
followi~lg is a descriptio~l of the discretely presented colnponellt units. 

Helldersollville Al-ts Council - Established to account for the operation of an organizatio~l to prolnote cultural 
activities within the City. Primary sources of fi111ds are memberships, grants, donations, fees for events and 
appropriations fiorn the primary gover~lment. The Mayor and Board of Aldermen appoint the board of the 
council. 

Beautif~ul Hendersonville - Established to account for the operation of the organization to prolllote the 
beautification of the City and recycling. Primaiy sources of filnds are donations, sale of recyclables and 
appropriations fiom the primary government. The Mayor and Board of Aldemen appoint the board. 

Industrial Develop~nent Board - Established to account for the developnlent of the City's illdustrial park. Prilna~y 
sources of fullds are sale of i~ldustrial site lots fiom land originally p~urchased by the City. The Mayor and Board 
of Aldermen appoint the board. 

Separate fillancia1 statement information is not available for the colnponellt units, however llone of the above 
colnpollellt units have multiple funds (each consists only of a general fund) and therefore, the infor~natioll 
presented in the government-wide financial statements presents the required disclosure. 

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide fillallcia1 statements, the statement of net position and the statement of changes in net position, 
report informati011 on all of the non-fiducialy activities of the primary government and its coinponellt units. For the 
most past, the effect of the interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Goverl~mental activities, which 
~lormally are supposted by taxes and intergovernme~ltal revenues, are reported separately fiom business-type activities, 
which rely to a sig~lificant extent on fees and charges for suppost. Likewise, the prilna~y government is repolfed 
separately fio111 cestain legally separate colnponellt units for which the pri~naiy goverllment is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or seglnent are 
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. 
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants (including fines and fees) who purchase, use, or 
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given fi111ctio11 or segment and 2) grants and 
contributiolls that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular filnction or segment. 
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are repolfed instead as general revenues. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

June 30,2014 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued: 

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements, Continued 

Separate financial statelnents are provided for governmental funds, proprietaly funds, and a fiducialy fund, 
even though the latter are excluded fsom the government-wide financial staternents. 111 the fiducialy fund 
category is an agency fund type which is unlike other fund types, reposting only assets and liabilities and 
cannot be said to have a measurement focus. Major individual governlnental fiinds and major individual 
enterprise fiinds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statements Presentatioll 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the econolnic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting, as is the proprietaly fund. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the tinling of related cash flows. Property taxes are 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirelnents imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial staternents are reposted using tlne current financial resources measurement focus 
and the nlodified accrual basis of accounting. Reve~lues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible witllin the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the govern~nent considers 
propel-ty taxes and disposal revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period. Sales taxes and other shared revenues tlnrougl~ intermedia~y collecting governments are 
considered lneasurable and available if received within 30 days of year end. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as 
well as expenditures related to cornpensated absences and claims and judg~nents are recorded only whell 
pay~nent is due. 

Propel-ty taxes, franchise taxes, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period using the criteria 
specified in the paragraph above. All other revenue items are considered to be nleasurable and available 
only when cash is received by the government. 

The City reports the following major governlnental funds: 

The General Fznld is tlne government's prilna~y operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another f~ind. 

The Solid TYaste Fzind accounts for the operation of the sanitation solid waste department. Financing is 
provided by fees for solid waste pick up. 

The Capital P~*ojects Fzndaccounts for the financial resources to be used for acquisition or construction 
of major government capital assets, inlprove~nents or repairs. 

The Debt Service Fzir~d accounts for the accumulation and disburse~nent of funds for governmental debt 
service requirements. 

The City reposts the following proprietaly fund: 

The GolfEnterp1.ise Fzirld accounts for the activities of the municipal olf course which provides an 

1 i eighteen hole golf course for public use. All activities necessaly to rovi e these services are accounted 
for in sucll a manner as to show a profit or loss similar to compara le private enterprises. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fiducialy fund: 

Trail1il7g crrld Tee11 Activity Agency Fz~l~dwlnich is an agency fund type used to account for assets held by 
the City in a fiducialy capacity to others for training and teen activities. This fimd is unlike other fi~nds in 
that it reports only assets and liabilities and cannot be said to have a lneasurelnent focus. 

The City had no internal funds as of or for the year ended June 30,2014. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

June 30, 2014 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued: 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation, Continued 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions are those charges between various functions whose elimnation would distort the 
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants (includin fines and 
fees) for goods, services, or privileges provided 2) operatrng grants and coqtnbutions, ancf3) capital 
grants and contributions. General revenues include all taxes and mternally dedicated resources. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues .and expenses from non-operating items, Operating 
revenues and, expenses generally result from providing services and producm and delivering goods in S connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operatrons. The pnncipa operating revenues of the 
City's proprietary golf enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales, green fees and rentals. Operatin 
expenses for the enterprise fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, an 8 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non- 
operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Cash and Investments 

The City of Hendersonville is authorized to invest in certificates of deposit in local banks and FNMA 
Discount Notes as well as participate in the Local Government Investment Pool administered by the State of 
Tennessee Treasury Department. The pool contains investments in collateralized certificates of deposits, 
U.S. Treasury Securities and Repurchase Agreements backed by U.S. Treasury Securities. City policy 
dictates that collateral meet certain requirements and be deposited in an escrow account in another 
institution for the benefit of the City of Hendersonville and must be a minimum of 105% of the value ofthe 
deposits placed in the institutions less the amount protected by federal deposit insurance. Collateral 
requirements are not applicable for financial institutions which participate in the state of Tennessee's 
collateral pool which is administered by the Tennessee Treasury Department. 

Cash and Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, savings accounts and short-term certificates of deposit with 
an original maturity of three months or less. Due to liquidity, the City considers the funds deposited in 
the local government investment pool as a cash equivalent for financial statement and cash flow 
purposes. The fair value of the position in the investment pool is the same as the value of the pool 
shares. 

Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lendinglborrowing arrangements outstanding at the 
end of the fiscal year are referred to as "due tolfi-om other funds". 

All solid waste fees and property tax receivables, are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible. The 
solid waste and property tax receivable allowance is equal to 15 percent and 12 percent respectively of 
outstanding undeferred receivable. 

Inventories of Supplies and Prepaid Items 

Inventories of supplies are valued at cost using the first-in first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of 
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepays of government funds are 
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. Prepaid amounts relate to postage 
and insurance. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

June 30,2014 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, whicll include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., road, bridges, sidewallcs 
and similar items), are reposted in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the 
government-wide fillancia1 statements. Capital assets excluding infsastructures, are defined by the City as assets 
with an initial, individual cost of $7,000 or nlore and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. 
Infrastructure capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an individual cost of $50,000 or more with an 
estiinated usefill life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated cost if 
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of 
donation. 

The cost of norlnal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or nlaterially extend assets 
lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and ilnprovelnellts are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred 
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as pal? of the capitalized 
value of the assets constsucted. During the year, there was no capitalized interest recorded. 

Capital assets of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
llves: 

Buildings 
Irnproveinents other than buildings 
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 
Road systern infiastructme 
Sidewalks 
Bridges 

40 years 
15 years 

5 - 10 years 
25 years 
25 years 
50 years 

Colnpellsated Absences 

City policy permits the accumulation, within cestain limitations, of vacation leave and sick days. Vacation leave 
days may accumulate and carty folward fsom one cale~ldar year to the next, up to one year's allowed 
accumulation. In extenuating circulnstallces waivers may be received on caslyover with limitations. Sick pay 
may accumulate with no limits. One half of siclc leave accumulated ]nay be paid to employees hired before 
Septen~ber 1, 1997 when eligible for retirement. No other amounts of siclc pay are vested in the event of 
employee ternlination. 

All vacation and one half sick pay of eligible employees is accrued when incurred in the gover~lment-wide 
and proprietary fillancia1 statements. A liability for these amounts is reposted in governmental funds only if 
they have matured, for example, as a result of employee terminatio~ls or retirecnents. 

Long-term Obligatiolls 

111 the govemme~lt-wide financial statements, and proprietaly fund types in the fi~nd financial statements, long- 
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
busi~less-type activities, or proprietaly fund type statement of net position. 

Bond prerniums and discount are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds or notes using the straight- 
line method. Bonds payable are reposted net ofthe applicable bond prelniuin or discount. Loss on refi~nding, if 
applicable, is reposted as deferred outflow of resources and amortized over the shoster period of the old or new 
debt. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

June 30, 2014 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 

Long-term Obligations, Continued 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond and note premiums and discounts, 
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums 
received on debt issuance are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported 
as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 
recognized currently in all financial statements. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expenselexpenditure) until then. The City has no items that qualify for reporting in this category. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time. The government has items which arise, under the accrual and modified 
accrual basis of accounting that qualify for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable 
revenue, is reported in the governmental activities statement of net position and the governmental funds balance 
sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes and state shared revenue. 
These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become 
available. 

Equity Classification 

In the government-wide financial statements, equity is shown as net position and classified into three 
components: 

Net investment ir~ capital assets - Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgage notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted netposition -Net position with constraints placed on their use either by (1) external groups such as 
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; (2) law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is 
the City's policy to trse restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as tlzey are needed. 

Unrestricted ~ e t  position - All other net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net 
investment in capital assets." 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) Statement 54, fund balance is reported 
in the fund financial statements under the following categories. Nonspendable fund balance represents amounts 
that are required to be maintained intact, such as inventories and prepaid items. Restricted fund balance is that 
portion of fund balance that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by external source or through 
enabling legislation. It is the City's policy to first use the restricted fund balance when an expenditure is 
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted funds are available. Coiniizitted fund balance 
includes amounts constrained to specific purposes as determined by formal action of the City using its highest 
level of decision-making authority, an ordinance by the City Board. Conversely, to rescind or mod@ a fund 
balance commitment, action by the City Board is also required. Assigned fund balance amounts are intended to 
be used by the City for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be restricted or committed. Intent may be 
stipulated by the Board by resolution. Appropriations of fbnd balance to eliminate projected budgetary deficits 
in the subsequent year's budget are presented as assignments of fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is the 
residual classification of the General Fund. The City's policy for the use of unrestricted fund balance amounts 
require that committed amounts would be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned 
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund 
balance classifications could be used. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

June 30, 2014 

1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued: 

Property Tax and Garbage Disposal Fees 

The City's property tax is levied on the first Monday in October on the assessed value as listed on January 1 for 
all real and personal property located in the City's legal boundaries. All City taxes on real estate are declared to 
be a lien on such realty from January 1 of the year assessments are made. Since the enforceable legal claim is 
not until the next fiscal year, these taxes are deferred. Assessed values are established by the State ofTennessee 
at the following rates of assessed market value: 

Industrial and Conlmercial Property Public Utility Property 55% 
- Real 40% Farm and Residential Property 25% 
- Personal 30% 

Taxes are levied at a rate of $0.65 per $100 of assessed valuation for tax year 2014 and $0.65 per $100 for tax 
year 2013. Payments may be made during the period from October 1 through February 28. Current tax 
collections of $9,605,463 for the fiscal year ended June 30,2014 were approximately 98 percent ofthe tax levy. 
Delinquent taxes past due for fourteen months are turned over to the county court clerk for collection. 

The government-wide financial statements report property taxes receivable of $1 0,494,115 which is net of an 
allowance for doubthl collections of $54,407. Of this receivable amount, $10,100,000 represents the estimated 
net realizable 2014 property taxes. This amount is included in deferred inflows of resources since they are not 
available until a future period. 

The receivable reported in the governmental funds balance sheet is $10,548,522 with an offsetting deferred 
inflow of resources for amounts not available at June 30, 2014. The other taxes receivable reported in both 
financial statements includes $129,796 for beer and liquor taxes. 

Disposal fees are billed to finance the City's garbage collection system on a fiscal year basis. Disposal fees are 
billed annually on the first Monday in October and are payable through February 28. The disposal rate for 
fiscal year 2014 was $259 per residence. The disposal fees are accounted for in the Solid Waste Fund, a major 
governmental fund. 

The government-wide financial statement report disposal fees receivable in the amount of $119,112 
which is net of an allowance for doubtful collections of $20,727. The receivable reported in the governmental 
funds balance sheet is $139,839 with an offsetting deferred inflows of resources of $1 12,839 for amounts not 
available at June 30, 2014. 

2) DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be 
returned or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. The 
City's policy requires deposits to be 105 percent secured by collateral, less the amount of Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation insurance (FDIC) or deposited in an institution which participates in the State Collateral 
Pool. Deposited funds may be invested in certificates of deposit in institutions with an established record of 
fiscal health and service. Collateral agreements must be approved prior to deposit of funds as provided by law. 
The City Board approves and designates a list of authorized depository institutions based on evaluation of 
solicited responses and certifications provided by financial institutions and recommendations of City staff. 

At June 30,2014 there were no amounts exposed to custodial credit risk. 
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2) DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, Continued 

Investments 

At June 30,2014 the City's reporting entity had no investments. 

Interest Rate Risk: 
The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its 
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

Credit Risk: 
The City does not have a formal policy relating to credit risk however the general investment policy allows 
investments in certificates of deposit in local banks, in FNMA discounts notes as well as investments in the 
Local Government Investment ~ o o l .  

Custodial Risk: 
The City cui-rently does not invest in securities held by counter parties other than the State Investment Pool. 

3) CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30,2014, was as follows: 

Primary Government: 
Governmental activities 

Beginning Ending 
Balance* Additions Deletions Reclasses Balance 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 4,632,797 - 4,632,797 
Construction in progress 6,598,303 783,801 - (5,432,714) 1,949,390 
Library building 7,548,522 - (7,548,522) 
Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 9,322,007 138,000 - 7,548,522 17,008,529 
Improvements other than building 2,796,6 18 25,996 - 2,822,614 
Machinery and equipment 1 1,203,45 1 1,860,021 (43,304) - 13,020,168 
Infrastructure 93,044.767 899.671 - 5.432.714 99,377,152 
Total capital assets $ 135.146.465 3.707.489 (43.304) - -138.810.650 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 4,74 1,322 354,663 - 5,095,985 
Improvements other 

than buildings 1,314,338 138,621 - 1,452,959 
Machinery and equipment 8,509,083 973,788 (43,304) - 9,439,567 
Infrastructure 52.350.804 3,787,134 - - 56.137.938 
Total accumulated depreciation 66,9 15,547 5.254,206 (43.304) - 72,126,449 
Governmental activities capital 

assets, net $ 68,230,918 66.684.201 

*As restated. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

June 30, 2014 

3) CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued: 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30,2014, was as follows (continued): 

Primary Government, Continued: 
Beginning 

Balance Additions Deletions Reclasses 

Busi~~ess-type activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 641,194 
Capital assets being depreciated 
Buildings and structures 1,029,454 4,300 
Improvements other than buildings 4,259,559 
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 706.496 3,458 - 
Total capital assets 6:636:703 7.758 - 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and structures 6 17,763 26,537 
Improvements other 

than buildings 4,090,627 168,935 
Machinery and equipment 506,285 42.965 - 

Total accumulated depreciation 5,214,675 238,437 - 

Business-type activities capital 
assets, net $1,422,028 

Depreciation expense was charged to function/programs as of June 30,2014, as follows: 

Goveinmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Street and public works 
Parks 
Codes and planning 

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Golf enterprise 

Ending 
Balance 

Current year capital asset additions of the governmental activities include $996,25 1 in donated infrastructure and 
equipment. 

Component Units Beginning Ending 
Capital assets not being depreciated: Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Land $ 10.852 10.852 

Capital assets being depreciated $ 31.879 1,073 30,806 

4) RECEIVABLES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Government-wide financial statement taxes and disposal fees receivable are net of allowance for doubthl accounts 
in the amount of $54,407 and $20,727 respectively. 
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4) RECEIVABLES AND DEFERREDKJNEARNED REVENUE, Continued: 

Deferred inflows of resources consist of amounts that are unavailable to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At 
June 30,2014 the components of deferred inflows of resources were as follows: 

Government-wide Fund 
Statements Statements 

Unlevied property taxes (unavailable) $ 10,100,000 10,100,000 
Delinquent property taxes (unavailable) 383,522 
Delinquent solid waste fees (unavailable) 112,839 
State and County shared taxes (unavailable) 3 16,906 1,735,913 

$ 10,416.906 12.332,274 

Unearned revenues consist of code department revenues collected in advance. 

5) RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Restricted assets consist of unspent bond proceeds in the amount of $2,972,613 and funds held by the state of 
Tennessee for the purchase of a road right-of-way in the amount of $1,132,256. 

6) INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Interfund receivables and payables are attributable to obligations for transfers between funds. The actual cash transfer 
had not been made at June 30,2014. This amounted to $1,044,877 which was an amount due from the General Fund 
to the Solid Waste Fund which represents collection of Solid Waste assessments not yet transferred to the Solid Waste 
Fund. These interfund amounts were liquidated subsequent to year end. Interfund transfers for the year ended June 
30, 2014 are attributable to the budgeted allocation of resources from one fund to another and consist of the 
following: 

Transfer In: 
Governmental 

Funds 

Solid Debt 
Waste Service General 

Totals 
Transfer Out: 
General Fund $ 487,591 2,369,559 2,857,150 
Golf Enteiprise Fund 44,877 44,877 

Transfers are made from the General Fund to the Solid Waste Fund to fund shortfalls in revenues and to the Debt 
Service Fund to provide for debt service payments. Transfer from the Golf Fund to the General Fund relates to return 
of prior year operating funds advanced. 

The General Fund also transferred $25,500 to the component units ($19,000 to the Arts Council and $6,500 to 
Beautiful Hendersonville). 

The only inter-fund revenues and expenses for the year ended June 30,2014 was a $40,000 management fee paid from 
the Golf Proprietary Fund to the General Fund. 

7) LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS PAYABLE 

The government issues general obligation bonds and notes to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of 
major capital facilities for general government purposes. 

The government also may issue bonds where the government pledges income derived from the acquired or constructed 
assets to pay debt service. These bonds relate to the Golf Enterprise Fund. Should golfrevenues be insufficient to pay 
the debt service the debt would be payable from the taxing authority of the City. For governmental activities, 
compensated absences and OPEB obligations are generally liquidated by the general fund and the state street aid fund, 
a nonmajor governmental fund. 
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The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2014: 

Balance Balance Current 
06-30-13 Addition Reductions 06/30/14 Portion 

Governmental Activities 
Notes payable $ 10,843,185 1,250,000 2,070,185 10,023,000 2,085,167 
Obligation to county 

school system 987,129 987,129 197,426 
Compensated absences 1,915,411 1,343,93 1 1,43 1,926 1,827,416 1,500,000 
Net OPEB liability 587,468 166.1 15 89,220 664.363 

Total Primary Government $ 14,333,193 2.760.046 3.591.331 13,501,908 3,782,593 

Note premiums 364,45 1 25.769 338.682 
$ 14.697.644 13.840.590 

Long term bonds and notes at June 30,2014 consisted of the following obligations: 

Governmental Activities 
Amount 

Outstanding 

$1,507,000 Capital Outlay- The notes are repayable in the annual installments 
through 2016 at a variable rate of interest based on bond market indexes. There is 
currently no cap on the rate. $ 344,000 

$4,100,000 Capital Outlay- The notes are payable in twelve installments through 
2023 at a rate of 3.210%. 

$6,8 10,000 Refunding and Improvement Capital Outlay Notes, Series 201 3- 
The notes are payable in annual installments through 2025 at rates of 
interest from 2% to 3%. 

$1,250,000 Capital Outlay - The notes are repayable in annual installments through 
2026 at a rate of interest of 2.43%. 

$987,129 Obligation to County School System - The obligation is payable in 
five annual installments beginning in 2015 and relates to unreimbursed county 
share of liquor taxes. 987,129 

A11 bonds and notes and other obligations are to be retired from property tax revenues and are backed by the full faith and 
credit of the City. 

From tinie to tinie, Industrial Revenue Bonds are issued to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the 
acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The Industrial 
Development Board of the City of Hendersonville, Tennessee, is a non-profit corporation organized and existing pursuant to 
Part 53 of Title 7 of the Tennessee Code. Among its powers, the IDB is authorized by statute to issue industrial revenue 
bonds and to use the proceeds of these bonds to finance certain projects by private sector entities. As of June 30,2014, the 
outstanding principal amount of all bonds issued by the IDB is not determinable; however, the aggregate principal amount of 
all industrial revenue bonds issued by the IDB since January 1,2000, was approximately $55.5 million. Payment of the 
indebtedness represented by these bonds typically is from revenues derived from operations at the sites and payment is 
typically secured by the real property or personal property acquired with the proceeds of the bonds. These industrial 
revenue bonds are not obligations of, and are not backed by the full, faith and credit of, the City of Hendersonville, the IDB, 
the State of Tennessee or any political subdivision of the State of Tennessee. Accordingly, these bonds are not reported as 
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. 
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In 2006, the City approved an economic impact plan submitted by the IDB for the area located within the City known 
generally as the Indian Lake Village Economic Development Area. Pursuant to the Plan, the IDB issued its industrial 
development revenue bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $18.0 million the proceeds of which were used to finance 
the construction of a bridge across Drakes Creek, the construction of a four lane divided boulevard from Saudersville Road 
to Indian Lake Boulevard and the construction of a public park of which four (4) acres is the site of the Hendersonville 
Public Library. The repayment of the IDB bonds is secured by letters of credit issued by Fifth Third Bank guaranteed by 
the developer. The City and the County allocated the increase in property tax revenues within the economic development 
area to the IDB to be used to pay debt service and other authorized expenses related to the bonds. During fiscal year 2014, 
the amount of incremental property taxes generated by the economic development area equaled $445,680, and this amount 
was used for debt service and related expenses of the IDB bonds. The City possesses no obligation to repay the bonds, and 
the bonds are not reported as liabilities of the City in the accompanying financial statements. 

The annual requirements to amortize all bonds and notes outstanding as of June 30,2014, are as follows: 

Year 
Ending 
June 30 
2015 

2018 
2019 

2020-2024 
2025-2026 
Totals 

Governmental Activities 
Obligation 
to Countv 

school system Notes Interest Totals 
$ 197.426 2.085,167 279.140 2,561,733 

8) DEFERRED COMPENSATION AND FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLAN 

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 
457. The plan, available to all full time employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. 
Participation in the plan is optional. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, 
death or unforeseeable emergency. Assets of the plan are not subject to the claims of the City's creditors in accordance 
with the Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996. The plan is administered by ING Life Insurance and Annuity 
Company. 

Investments are managed by the plan's trustee under six mutual fund investment options, or a combination thereof. The 
choice of the investment option(s) is made by the participants. 

The City allows its employees to participate in a Cafeteria Plan under section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code. 
Employees have the opportunity to choose among various tax free benefits and to have those benefits paid directly by the 
City. Any forfeiture must be used to pay costs of the plan, reduce costs of benefits or refund pro-rata to participants. 

9) PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description 

Employees of the City of Hendersonville are members of the Political Subdivision Pension Plan (PSPP), an agent 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System 
(TCRS). TCRS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Benefits are determined by a 
formula using the member's high five-year average salary and years of service. Members become eligible to retire at the 
age of 60 with 5 years of service, or at any age with 30 years of service. A reduced retirement benefit is available to 
vested members at the age of 55. Disability benefits are available to active members with five years of service who 
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become disabled and cannot engage in gainful employment. There is no service requirement for disability that is the 
result of an accident or injury occurring while the member was in the performance of duty. Members joining the 
system after July 1, 1979 become vested after 5 (five) years of service and members joining prior to July 1, 1979 were 
vested after 4 (four) years of service. Benefit provisions are established in state statute found in Title 8, Chapter 34-37 
of the Tennessee Code Annotated (TCA). State statutes are amended by the Tennessee General Assembly. Political 
subdivisions such as Hendersonville participate in the TCRS as individual entities and are liable for all costs associated 
with the operation and administration of their plan. Benefit improvements are not applicable to a political subdivision 
unless approved by the chief governing body. 

The TCRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for the PSPP. That report may be obtained by writing to Tennessee Treasury Department, Consolidated 
Retirement System, 10th Floor Andrew Jackson Building, Nashville, TN 37243-0230 or can be accessed at 
lzttp://~v~,vw. tr~.gov/treaszrry/tcrs/PS/. 

Funding Policy 

Hendersonville has adopted a non-contributory retirement plan for its employees by assuming employee contributions up 
to 5% of annual covered payroll. 

Hendersonville is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate for fiscal year ending June 30,2014 
was 15.41% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members are set by state statute. 
Contribution requirements for Hendersonville are established and may be amended by the TCRS Board of Trustees. 

Annual Pension Cost 

For the year ending June 30, 2014, Hendersonville's annual pension cost of $2,400,176 to TCRS was equal to 
Hendersonville's required and actual contributions. 

The required contribution was determined as part of the July 1, 201 1 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age 
actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) rate ofreturn on investment of 
present and future assets of 7.5% per year compounded annually, (b) projected 3.0% annual rate of inflation, (c) 
projected salary increases of 4.75% (graded) annual rate (no explicit assumption is made regarding the portion 
attributable to the effects of inflation on salaries), (d) projected 3.5% annual increase in the Social Security wage base, 
and (e) projected post retirement increases of 2.5% annually. The actuarial value of assets was determined using 
techniques that smooth the effect of short-term volatility in the market value of total investments over a ten-year period. 
Hendersonville's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The 
remaining amortization period at July 1,20 1 1 was four years. An actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1,20 1 1, 
which established contribution rates effective July 1,2012. 

Trend Inforn~ation: 

Fiscal 
Year 
Ending 
613 O/ 14 
6130113 
6130112 

Annual 
Pension 

Cost (APC) 
$2,400,176 
$2.227.422 

Percentage 
of APC 

Contributed 
100.00% 

Net 
Pension 

Obligation 

As of July 1, 201 1, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 97.74% funded. The actuarial accrued 
liability for benefits was $45.5 million, and the actuarial value of assets was $44.48 million, resulting in an unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $1.03 million. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered 
by the plan) was $14.22 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 7.23%. 
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The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the notes to the 
financial statements, present multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AAL's for benefits. 

10) POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN 

The City administers the City of Hendersonville Post Retirement Medical Insurance Plan. For accounting purposes, 
the plan is a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan. Benefits are established and amended by the Mayor and 
Board of Aldermen. Retired employees hired prior to July 1,2008 with 30 years of service or employees over 60 
years of age with 15 years of service with the City of Hendersonville, and who are vested in TCRS, are eligible for 
the plan. The amount of benefit is based on years of service and the benefit ranges from 25% to 100% of the City 
paid portion of their health insurance if the employee elects to continue on the plan. Retiree medical benefits cease 
at age 65. The plan does not issue a stand alone report. 

Funding Policy 
The premium requirements are established and may be amended by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. The plan is a 
fully insured PPO plan with three options. The portion of the premium paid by the City will be the dollar amount the 
City pays for the current individual employee coverage multiplied by the applicable amount of percentage relative to 
years of service. This only applies to employees hired prior to 2008. The City's obligation ranges from 25% for 15 
years of service, up to 100% for 30 years of service. The retiree is responsible to pay any excess premium charged by 
the insurer for the amount above the City paid portion. The current monthly premium ranges from $462 to $55 1 per 
month for single coverage and ranges fi-om $126 1 to $1,502 for family coverage. 

The most recent actuarial valuation was July 2012 and the following is based on projections from the City's actuary. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligations 

June 30,2014 

ARC $ 167,075 
Interest on NPO 23,499 
Amortization of prior year 

Net OPEB Obligation (24,459) 
Annual OPEB Cost 166,115 
Amount of Contribution* (89,220) 
Increase in NPO 76,895 
Net OPEB Obligation 71111 3 587,468 
Net OPEB Obligation 6130114 $ 664:363 

"Contribution based on expected contribution from study. 

Percentage Annual Net OPEB 
OPEB Cost Obligation 

Year End Annual OPEB Cost Contributed At Year End 
6130114 $ 166,115 53.71% $664,363 
6/3 Of1 3 173,857 47.94% 587,468 
6130112 189,248 5 1.90% 496,957 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

June 30,2014 

10) POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

The funding status of the plan as of the last actuarial valuation date was as follows: 

Actuarial valuation date 7/01/12 
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 2,028,777 
Actuarial value of plan asset - 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability 2.028.777 
Actuarial value of assets as a % of AAL - 
Covered payroll $ 14.13 1.090 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 14.36% 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events 
far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
conlpared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, 
presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether 
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the time of each 
valuation and on the pattern on sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point. Actuarial 
calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions 
used include techniques that are designed to reduce short term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the 
actuarial value of assets. 

In the July 20 12 actuarial valuation, the Projected Unit Cost Method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 
4.00 percent discount rate of return (1% real and 3% inflation)and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8.5 
percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5 percent in 2020. Both rates include a 3 percent 
inflation assumption. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of 
compensation on an open basis over a 30 year period. 

11) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Litigation 
There are certain pending lawsuits in which the City is involved. The City attorney estimated that potential claims 
against the City resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the financial statements of the City. 

City Golf Course - Management Agreement 
On August 28, 1992, the City entered into a management contract with Edwin B. Raskin Company, Inc. to operate 
and manage the City's golf course. Under the terms of the contract, expenses will be paid by the management 
company from golf revenues. The City will be responsible for any shortfall. The required personnel will be 
employees of the management company. The contract provided that the City shall pay a management fee of $40,000 
per year. 

Joint Venture 
The City is a participant in the Sumner County Resource Authority, a joint venture, in which it retains an ongoing 
financial interest. The Authority is a joint venture of Surnner County and the Cities of Gallatin and Hendersonville 
which operates a solid waste transfer station. An agreement between the Resource Authority, the county and the 
cities provides that Sumner County will pay an annual $100,000 fee in lieu of tipping fees. The cities of Gallatin and 
Hendersonville agree to pay tipping fees in such amounts as may be determined by the Authority but cannot exceed 
$45 per ton for solid waste and $3.50 per cubic yard for brush. Effective July 1,201 1 the tipping fee became $44per 
ton. The City paid no tipping fees and $62,058 for brush disposal for 2014. These same entities have executed a 
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"contract in Lieu of Performance Bond" with the State of Tennessee for financial assurance of the closure and post 
closure costs of the landfill should the Resource Authority be unable to perform. 

Also during 20 13 the City entered into a Post-Closure Monitoring and Maintenance Agreement with the Authority. 
The agreement provides that the three entities will pay for the post closure costs associated with the landfills incurred 
by the Authority. This cost will be paid 317 by the county and 217 by the cities. During 20 14, the amount paid by the 
City was $1,068. 

The Authority as of June 30,2014 has net investment in capital assets of $1,978,065, and an unrestricted net deficit 
of $379,458 compared to $2,126,930 and $571,069 respectively for year 2014. The City has no equity interest in 
the Resource Authority. Complete financial statements of the Authority are available from the City Finance Director. 

Contracts 
The City of Hendersonville has a contract for trash pickup and disposal services. The pick-up rate is $19.68 per 
month and the hauling and disposal rate is $39.57 per ton. The contract also provides for fuel adjustment fees. 

At June 30, 2014 the City did not have any material construction contracts in process. 

Operating Lease 
The City has entered into an operating lease for eight police motorcycles. The fiscal year 2014 lease expense was 
$27,196. The obligation under the lease is as follows: 

12) RISIC MANAGEMENT 

The City of Hendersonville is exposed to various risks for property and casualty losses. For many years, the City has 
been a member of a public entityriskpool as opposed to purchasing commercial insurance. In fiscal year 2007, the 
City requested bids for property, casualty, and workers compensation losses from both the public entityrisk pool and 
commercial insurance carriers. The City determined it was more economically feasible to continue coverage with the 
public risk pool as opposed to purchasing commercial insurance. The City has been a member of the Tennessee 
Municipal League Risk Management Pool since the Pool's creation in 1979 by the Tennessee Municipal League, an 
association of Tennessee cities. The City pays an annual premium to the TML pool for its property, casualty and 
worlters compensation insurance coverage. The TML pool is self-sustaining through member premiums, with 
adequate reinsurance purchased through commercial reinsurance companies for both general and catastrophic claims 
with loss attachment levels approved by independent actuaries and auditors. 

The City continues to carry commercial insurance for other potential exposures such as employee health and 
accident and environmental risks. Settled claims from these losses have not exceeded commercial insurance 
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The City has assumed higher deductibles on certain types of insurance 
including workers compensation insurance in an effort to lower premiums. 

13) BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

Annual budgets are adopted on an encumbrance basis, which is a basis not consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principals for all governmental funds except Debt Service and Capital Projects funds. Expenditures may 
not exceed appropriations authorized by the Mayor and Aldermen. The legal level of control is at the department 
level. The City utilizes departmental budgeting as authorized by the appropriating ordinances and follows these 
procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements. 
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1. The Mayor consults with all department heads prior to January lSt of each year to establish his priorities 
and objectives with each department for the coming year. The Mayor also sets salary proposals for 
departments. 

2. During January and February, department heads pre are a roposed budget for their department. The 
Finance Director prepares revenue projections for t e bu get and prepares a summary of the overall 
budget for the Mayor to review. 

R 2 
3. Department heads meet with the Mayor and Finance Director to review their budget requests. The 

Mayor can amend budget requests as he deems necessary. 

4. The department heads then present their budget requests to the standing committee to which their 
department is assigned. 

5. Durin May, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen conducts a budget workshop meeting that addresses B speci ic areas of the budget. 

6. At least ten days before the proposed budget is resented to the Board of Mayor and Aldermen, a notice 

circulation. 
S of public hearing and a copy of the propose budget is published in a local newspaper of general 

7. At the regular board meeting, prior to the vote on second reading, a public hearin is held to give all 

R F voters and taxpayers a chance to be heard in erson or by an attorney. Citizens are a so always given an 
opportunity to speak at the beginning of eac meeting, so the citizens have two chances to comment on 
the budget before it is passed on the second and final reading. Prior to July lSt, the budget is legally 
enacted through passage of an ordinance on two readings. 

8. Department heads are authorized to expend funds within total departmental appropriations. However, 
amendments to the budget chan ing departmental and/or total appropriations require the passage of an B ordinance on two readings. Bu get transfers between departments must be approved by resolution and 
passed by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen. 

9. At the end of each year, all unencumbered appropriations which were appropriated on a fiscal year basis 
revert back to their respective fund balance, except for certain capital projects. 

10. Formal budgetary integration is not employed for the Capital Projects Funds, and Debt Service Fund 
because effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through bond indenture or other provisions. 
Annual debt service requirements are budgeted in the General Fund through operating transfers to the Debt 
Service Fund. 

No departments exceeded their departmental appropriations for the year ended June 30,2014. 

The nature and amount of the adjustments necessary to convert the actual generally accepted accounting principle data 
to the budgetary basis is as follows: 

General 
Fund 

Net change in fund balance Generally 
~ c c e ~ t e ~ ~ c c o u ~ t i ~ ~ ~  Principle  asi is: $ (601,864) 
Add: Prior year reserve for encumbrances 757,346 
Less: Current year reserve for encumbrances (330,594) 
Budget Basis $ (175.112) 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

June 30, 2014 

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING, Continued 

Encumbrances 

Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as a part of assigned or committed fund balance as appropriate. 
Encumbrances are obligations in the form of signed unfulfilled purchase orders or contracts at the end of the fiscal 
year. Expenditures plus ending encumbrances less beginning encumbrances may not legally exceed the legally 
adopted total budget of each department within each department. Encumbrance accounting is utilized for each 
department within each fund. Encumbrance accounting is utilized for budgetary control purposes and is reflected in 
the Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures, Encumbrances and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual to provide a 
more meaningful comparison with the legally prescribed budget. Encumbrances, however, are not treated as 
expenditures in the financial statements except for the aforementioned statements which compare budgeted amounts to 
actual amounts. The significant current year encumbrances are as follows: 

General State Street 
Fund Aid Fund (Non-major fund) 

Public workslstreet maintenance $ 101,5 15 359,471 
Law enforcement 222,864 
Other 6,215 

$ 330,594 359,471 

Budget Amendments 

The General Fund expenditure and other financing uses budget was amended by $70,871. The major amendments 
related to Public Safety. 

GASB STATEMENTS ADOPTED 

For 2014, the City adopted GASB No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans; an Allzendrnent of GASB Statement 
No. 25. This statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 25 and No. 50 related to pension plans that are 
administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements. The adoption of GASB 67 did not affect the current year 
financial statements. 

GASB STATEMENTS ISSUED BUT NOT YET IMPLEMENTED 

GASB Statement 68 replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Per~sions by State and Local 
Governnze~zt Enzployers and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to governments that provide pensions 
through pension plans administered as trusts or similar arrangements that meet certain criteria. Statement 68 requires 
governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for pensions. The requirements 
of statements are effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1,2014. 

RESTATEMENT 

In a prior fiscal year, the City completed construction of a library facility funded by the City and the County. Records 
indicated the initial intent was to transfer the facility to the County, however the governing bodies have been unable to 
reach an agreement on the terms of the transfer. The City has not depreciated the facility in prior years, however, due 
to lapse of time the City has determined it necessary to begin depreciating the facility. The amount ofunrecorded prior 
year depreciation at June 30,2013 was $997,876. 

Also during the fiscal year, the State of Tennessee determined the City owed the State for City road improvement 
projects completed in prior years. The State had not billed the City due to computer problems. The total amount owed 
the State is $335,485, however $224,228 related to projects completed in prior years. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

June 30,2014 
16) RESTATEMENTS, Continued 

These restatements resulted in the following changes in beginning of year net position and fund balance. 

Governmental 
Activities 

Net position, beginning of year 
as previously reported $ 69,023,448 

Payable to State of Tennessee (224,228) 
Infsastructure asset adjustment 224,228 
Accu~nulated depreciation adjustment-infsastlxcture (40,053) 
Acculnulated depreciation adjustment-libraiy facility (997,876) 
Net position, beginning of year as restated $ 67,985,519 

State Street Aid Fund* 
JGAAP Basis') 

Fund balance beginning of year 
as previously reposted 

Payable to State of Tennessee 
Fund balance, beginning of year as restated 

The correction of errors related to years prior to June 30, 2013 and had no effect on current year changes of fi~nd 
balance and the effect on the changes in net position was a decrease of $208,544 related to depreciation for both fiscal 
years 2013 and 2014. 

*Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund 

17) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Subsequent to year end, the City issued $2,500,000 in tax and revenue anticipation notes. Proceeds fsom the notes will 
be used for the City's General Fund operating expenses for fiscal year 201 5. The notes were issued at an interest cost of 
0.44% and ase expected to be paid fi.0111 the 201 5 fiscal year property taxes. 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

Political Subdivision Pension Plan 
Supplementary Information 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Funding Progress for Hendersonville, Tennessee: 

(Dollar amounts in thousands) 

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Covered UAAL as a 
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Ratio Payroll Percentage 

Date Assets Liability (UAAL) of Covered 
Payroll 

I_a) 0 (b)-(a) (alb) (C) ((b-a)/c) 

OPEB Plan 

Hendersonville Employee 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

(dollar amounts expressed in thousands) 

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded 
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Ratio 

Date Assets Liability (UAAL) 
(AAL) 

(a) (b) (b) - (a) (alb) 

July 1 ,  2012 $ $2,028 $2,028 0% 

July 1 ,  2010 $2,030 $2,030 0% 

July 1, 2007 $1,610 $1,610 0% 

Covered UAAL as a 
Payroll Perceutage of 

Covered 
Payroll 

(c‘) ((b-aYc) 



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL NONMAJOR 
FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL AND FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

State Street Aid Fund - This fund accounts for all revenue and expenditures from the City's 
share of state gasoline taxes. Tennessee state law requires these receipts be kept in a 
separate ftlnd and used for the construction and maintenance of city streets and certain 
related street expenditures. 

Drug Fund - This fund accounts for funds received directly from the enforcement of laws 
associated with illegal drug activity. Under state law, the f~lnds are to be used only for the 
enforcement of the drug laws and for the drug education of the Police Department. 

Training and Teen Activity Agency Fund - This fund accounts for assets held by the City in 
a fiduciary capacity to others for training and teen activities. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due froin other governments 
Prepaid items 

Total Assets 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

June 30,2014 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Unavailable revenue 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable 
Fund balance - restricted 

Total Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances 

Special Revenue Funds 
State 
Street Drug 

Aid Fund Fund 

Total 
Noninaj or 

Governmental 
Funds 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balance 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental: 

State gasoline tax 
Interest 
Drug related fines, seizures, and sales 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

Street Maintenance: 
Current: 

Salaries 
Elnployee benefits 
Other Costs - maintenance and lighting 

Capital outlay 

Program Costs: 
Current: 

Other costs 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year, as restated 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

Special Revenue Funds 
State 
Street Drug 

Aid Fund Fund 

Total 
Nonlnajor 

Governmental 
Funds 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Revenues 

Intergovernmental: 
Gasoline tax, State of Tennessee 

Interest 
Total Revenues 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Encumbrances and Changes 
in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual 

State Street Aid Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Ex~enditures 
Street Maintenance 

Salaries 
Benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures and E~lcumbrances 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures and Encumbrances (2 1 1,645) (2 1 1,645) 236,561 448,206 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year, as restated 1,063,055 1,063,055 838,827 (224,228) 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

* 1989 tax $146,933 
Three cent tax 272,709 
Gas & motor fuel tax 914,494 

$1,334,136 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, Encumbrances and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual 

Drug Fund 

Revenues 
Other: 

Interest 
Drug related fines, seizures and sales 

Total Revenues 

Exaenditures 
Program costs 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures and Encumbrances 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 
Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures and Encumbrances 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 160,147 160,147 

Fund Balance, End of Year 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

Training and Teen Activity Agency Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Beginning End 
of Year Additions Deletions of Year 

Assets: 

Cash 

Liabilities: 
Liabilities 



FINANCIAL SCHEDULES 

Financial Schedules are used to demonstrate finance-related legal and contractual compliance, 
provide details of data summarized in the financial statements, and present other information 
deemed useful. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds and Component Units 

Schedule By Function and Activity 

June 30,2014 

Improveme~lts 
Building & Other Tlia~l Machinery Constructioti 

Land Irnproveme~lts Buildings & Equipment Infastructure In Progress Total 
Primary Government: 

Function and Activity: 

General Governnie~lt $1,346,112 3,033,875 375,280 91,082 287 4,846,636 

Parks 1,020,504 1,490,460 2,447,334 881,769 756,429 6,638 6,603,134 

Codes arid Planning 156,649 156,649 

Public safety: 
Police 
Fire 

Streets and public \\rorlcs 2,137,28 1 8,496,856 2,198,775 98,620,436 1,942,752 113,396,100 

Total governmental furids capital assets 4,632,797 17,008,529 2,822,614 13,020,168 99,377,152 1,949,390 138,810,650 

Colnpoliel~t Units: 1 0,852 35,096 45,948 

$4,643,649 17,008,529 2,857,710 13,020,168 99,377,152 1,949,390 138,856,598 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds and Component Units 

Schedule of Changes in Capital Assets By Function and Activity 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Function and Activity 
Primary Government: 

Balance 
July 1,2013 - 

Transfers & Balance 
Additions Deletions June 30,201 4 

General Government $4,846,636 4,846,636 

Parks 6,555,123 56,3 15 (8,304) 6,603,134 

Codes and Planning 156,649 156,649 

Public safety: 
Police 
Fire 

Streets and public works 1 1 1,462,24 1 1,933,859 - 113,396,100 

Total governmental funds capital assets $1 35,146,465 3,707,489 (43,304) 138,810,650 

Component Units: 
Industrial Developmemt Board 

Arts Council 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Cash and Cash Equivalents 

All Funds 

June 30,2014 

Maior Governmental Funds 

Descriptions 

General Fund: 
Passbook and checking accounts 
Petty Cash 

Total General Fund 

Solid Waste Fund 
Cash 

Total Solid Waste Fund 

Capital Projects Fund: 
Passbook and checking accounts 

Total Capital Projects Fund 

Nonmaior Governmental Funds 

State Street Aid Fund: 
Passbook and checking accounts 

Total State Street Aid Fund 

Interest 
Rates Amount 

Drug Fund: 
Passbook and checking accounts 

Total Drug Fund 

Pro~rietarv Fund 

Golf Enterprise Fund 
Petty Cash 
Passbook and checking accounts 

Total Golf Enterprise Fund 

Total Primary Government 

Fidiciary Fund: 
Passbook and checking accounts 

Component Units: 
Passbook and checking accounts 

Total Reporting Entity 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Changes in Property Taxes Receivable 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Taxes Collections Taxes 
Tax Receivable and Receivable 
Year June 30,2013 Assessments Ad-iustments June 30,2014 

2014 ** 10,100,000 
Taxes receivable per Governmental Funds Financial Statements 10,548,522 
Allowance for uncollectibles (54,407) 
Taxes receivable per Government Wide Financial Statements $10,494,115 

* Turned over to County Clerk for collection. 
** Unlevied taxes receivable (Anticipated current year levy) 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Changes in Disposal Fees Receivable 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Assessments Collections Assessments 
Assessment Receivable and Receivable 

Year June 30,2013 Assessments Ad-iustments June 30.2014 
- 

$144,175 4,336,116 4,340,452 
Allowance for uncollectibles 

* Turned over to County Clerk for collection. 



Capital 
Outlay 

Fiscal Notes 

CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

Schedule of Long-Term Debt Requirements 

June 30,2014 

Year Principal 

201 5 
20 16 
2017 
20 18 
2019 
2020 
202 1 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
Total 

Obligation 
to County Total Gov- 

School ernmental 
System Interest Activities 



CITY O F  HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Espenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Federal Grants As Identified in the 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance: 

CFDA 
Number Program Nanle Passed Through 

Passed 
Through to 

Expenditures Subrecipients 

US Housing & Urban Development 
14.218 Conlnlunity Developnlent Block Grant $1 87,484 
14.228 * Communit)~ Developme~lt Block Grant TN Dept.of Economic & C o ~ n ~ n  Dev. 637,65 1 

Small City Disaster Recovery 
14.231 Emergency Solutions Grant TN Dept. of Housing & Urban Dev. 39,049 $864,184 $39,049 

US Department of Justice 
16.607 Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 

Federal Emergency Management I US Department of Homeland Security 
97.044 * Assistance to Firefighters Program (FEMA) 473,760 
97.056 Port Security Grant Program (Homeland Security) Metro Nashville Davidson County 216,982 690,742 

US Department of Transportation 
20.205 * Safe Route to Schools Progra~n TN Dept.of Transportation 7,936 

* Congestion MitigationIAir Quality Grant TN Dept.of Transportation 45,522 
* Transportation Enhancement Program TN Dept.of Transportation 277,654 
* Greenway Progxam TN Dept.of Transportation 3 1,264 362,376 

20.607 DUI Enforcemeitt Program TN Dept.of Transportation 56,426 

This schedule was prepared using accrual basis of accounting. 
* Major Program 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30,2014 

Federal Grants As Identified in the 
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance: 

(Accrued) Grant (Accrued) 
or Deferred Funds or Deferred 

CFDA Grant Revenue Cash (Adjusted) Revenue 
Number Number Program Name Grantor Agency 710 111 3 Receipts Returned Expenditures 6130114 

14.218 Community Development Block Grant US Housing & Urban Development ($3.649) 181,491 187,484 (9,642) 

Community Development Block Grant Tennessee Department of Economic 
Disaster Recovery & Community Development (62,233) 699.884 

14.23 1 ESG-12-13 Emergency Solutions Grant Tennessee Housing Development 39.049 39,049 

16.607 Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program US Department of Justice 13,755 (1 3,755) 

20.205 090202 Transportation Enhancement Program TN Department of Transportation (962,549) 1,194,040 231,491 
0901 83 (1 40,455) 113.575 (1,720) 46.163 (71,323) 
CPD060152voucher Congestion MitigationIAir Quality Grant TN Department of Transportation (1 33,070) 133,070 45,522 (45,522) 

Traffic Signal Upgrade Project 
CM-9307(16) Greenway Grant TN Department of Transportation (7 1,200) 53,216 3 1.264 (49,248) 
SRTS-8300(75) Safe Route to Schools Program TN Department of Transportation (20,689) 1 1,450 7,936 (17,175) 

154AL-13-105 DUI Enforcement Program TN Department of Transportation (12,890) 56,494 56,426 (12,822) 

Edward BpelJustice Assistance Program US Department of Justice (13.905) 13,905 

Assistance to Firefighters Program Federal Emergency Management 

Port Security Grant Program US Department of Homeland Security 216,982 (21 6,982) 
Port Security Grant Program US Department of Homeland Security (273,844) 273.844 

State Grants 

TAC Grants TN Arts Council 

Credit balances represent inter-governmental receivables from State and Local Governments 
This schedule prepared on the accrual basis of accounting 



STATISTICAL INFORMATION 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Statistical Section Divider Page 

This part of the City of Hendersonville's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for 
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information 
says about the city's overall financial health. 

Schedule # 

Contents 
Financial Trends 

These Schedules contain trend information to help readers understand how the City's 
financial performance and well - being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 
These Schedules contain information to help readers assess the City's most significant 
local revenue source-its property tax. 

Debt Capacity 
These Schedules present information to help readers assess the affordability of the 
City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt 
in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These Schedules offer demographic and econon~ic indicators to help readers 
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place. 

Operating Information 
These Schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help readers understand 
how the information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides 
and the activities it performs. 

Except where noted, the information in these Schedules is derived from the City of Hendersonville's comprehensive annual 
financial reports for the relevant year. 



CITY O F  BENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Financial Trends Inforination - 
Net Posi t io~~ By Component - Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Scl~edule 1 
(Prepared using the accrual basis of accouatii~g) 

Governa~ental Activities: 
Net inveshilents ill capital assets 
Restricted for: 
Sheet o~aintenance 
I'ublic works 
Law eoforcelnent 
Solid waste disposal 
Parks 
Capital projects 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

Business-Tyne Activities 
Net i~ivestitieiits iii capital assets 
Unrestricted 

I'rimary Goveren~ent 
Net iilvesb~lel~ts in capital assets 
Restiicted for: 
Street ~~~aititenaiice 
Public works 

Law e~iforcettict~t 
Solid waste disposal 
Parks 
Capital projects 

Unrestricted 

Note: 2013 goveiiia~ei~tal activities net position restated to reflect effect of 2014 restate~ne~~t. 



CIT\' O F  HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Fillnllcinl Trends Informat io~~ - 
C h n ~ ~ g e s  in Net Position - Last Ten Fiscnl I'enrs 

Expenses: 
Governn~ental Activlties: 

General government 
Personnel 
Central sewices 
Finance 
Parks 
Codes 
Planning 
Police 
F ~ r e  
Contributions 
Disposal service 
I'rogram costs 
Streets and public works 

Interest expense on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities expenses 

Business-Type Activities 
Golf course 

Total business-type activlttes expenses 
Total prltnary government expenses 

Program Rc\,enucs: 
Governmental Activtt~es 

Charges for servlces 
F~nance 
Parks 
Codes 
I'lanning 
I'olice 
Disposal service 

Operating grants and coatribut~oos 
Captal grants and contributions 

Total governmental a c t ~ v ~ t ~ e s  program revenues 
Business-Type Activlties- 

Charges for services. 
Golf course 840,228 856,855 826,529 772,321 670,906 689,675 749,422 807,223 773,593 807,896 

Total bosiness-type activities program revenues 840,228 856,855 826,529 772,321 670,906 689,675 749,422 807,223 773,593 807,896 
Total primary government program revenues 11,462,819 11,705,722 lO,410,552 16,091,977 11,065,843 15,628,443 11,937,402 12,418,450 22,680,273 11,514,310 

Net (Exoe~tse)/Rca~eel,c . .  . 
Governmental Activities (1 1,757,954) (14,570,029) (18,605,143) (14,420,484) (23,070,813) (18,610,306) (22,893,438) (23,351,749) (15,636,944) (28,807,278) 
Business-Type Activities (255,934) (1 85,165) (160,338) (188,383) (268,898) (243,521) (175,825) (158,784) (195,037) (1 77,266) 

Total primary government net expense ($12,013,888) (14,755,194) (18,765,481) (14,608,867) (23.339.71 1) (18,853,827) (23,069,263) (23,510,533) (15,831,981) (28,984,544) 

Genernl Reven~les rind Other Chnnges in Nel 
Governmental Activities: 

Taxes 
I'roperty and in lieu of taxes 
Sales 
\\'holesale beer tax 
\\'holesale liquor tax 
Busmess tax 

Unrestr~cted state shared taxes 
Franchise taxes 
State shared sales tax 
State shared Income tax 
State shared beer tax 
State shared a lcol~ol~c  beverage tau 
Unrestr~cted other state shared taues 

Unrestricted investment earnings 
Other 
Suecial item 
Transfers 

Total govenirnental activities 
Bus~ness-Tvne Activities 

Investments earnings 4,356 9,398 13,737 8,900 1,664 325 462 365 333 186 
Transfers 

Total business-type activities 
Total primary government 

Chnnge ie Net P o s i t i o ~ ~  
Governmental activities 
Business-type act~v~ties 
'Total primary government 

Note- 2013 governmental act~vities change In net posit~on restated to reflect efl'ect of 2014 restatement 
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CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Financial Trend Information - 
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds. Last Ten Years 

Schedule 4 
(Prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Inter$ovemmental 
Fines and fees 
Licenses and permits 
Charges for services 
Uses of money, property and miscellaneous 
Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
General government 
Personnel 
Central services 
Finance 
Parks 
Codes 
Planning 
Public works 
Police 
Fire 
Contributions 
Disposal service 
Program costs 
Streets 
Debt service - Princpal 
Debt service - Interest 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 
Excess of revenues 
over (under) 
evpend~tures (1.081.733) (5,764,053) 74,784 508.231 888.566 (3,852.972) (3.352.967) (4.164.053) (736.079) (4.930.582) 

Other Flnanclng Sources & Uses 
Bond. notes. premlums and leases 1,250,000 7.196.540 270.370 4,100.000 7.976.294 34,708 6,043,020 
Operat~ng transfers 44,877 (173,640) 30,000 (263,975) (261,850) (263.900) (259,487) 
Insurance recover~es 892,117 

Total other financ~ng sources (uses) 1294,877 7,022.900 270.370 30,000 (263,975) 7.714.444 (229.192) 5,783,533 

Special item 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Debt Service as % of noncapital 
Expenditures 



CITY OF HENDERSONI'ILLE, TENNESSEE 

Revenue Capacity Information 
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property, Last Ten Years 

Schedule 5 

Aooraised Value 

Fiscal Public Industrial & Personal Farm & 
Year Utility Commercial Property Residential 

Property is assessed as follows: 
Industrial and Comnlercial: 
Real 40% 
Personal 30% 

Public Utility 55% 
Farm and Residentia 25% 

Assessed 
Value 

Total 
Direct Tax 

Total Rate* 

* Per $100 of assessed valuation 
Note - Property of the City is reappraised frequently. For this reason appraised value is considered 
equal to actual value. 
Source: City tax rolls 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Revenue Capacity Information 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates, Last Ten Years 

Schedule 6 

Overlapping 
Rates 

Fiscal Direct Rate 
Year City County** Total 

Source - County Tax Assessor 
The direct rate is a single rate with no components. 
Levied per $100 of assessed value 

** Levied on County property within the City 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Schedule 7 

Taxpayer 

Revenue Capacity Information 
Principal Property Taxpayers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value 

Inland American Hendersonville 
Hendersonville HospitalIHCA Realty 
Monthaven Park LLC 
Mid America Apartments 
Grove @ Waterford 
Piedmont Natural Gas 
Walmal-t Real Estate Realty 
DRG Hendersonville Eta1 (Gables) 
Sam's Club 
Hearth at Hendersonville 
Monthaven Place LLC 
United Dominion Realty 
Bellsouth 
CMS Hendersonville 
Trinity Broadcasting Network 
LowesIJDN Realty 
Target 
Carrington Place Apartments 

Totals 

Total Assessed Value 

2014 
Percent 
of Total 

Rank Assessed Value 

2005 
Taxable Percent 
Assessed of Total 

Value Rank Assessed Value - - 

Source: City tax rolls 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Revenue Capacity Information 
Property Tax Levies and Collections, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Schedule 8 

Fiscal 
Year 

Total 
Tax Levy 

Current 
Tax 

Collections 
Percent 

Collected - 

Delinquent 
Tax 

Collections 

164,636 
240,834 
181,121 
192,308 
221,976 
368,072 
285,176 
290,044 
125,002 

Total 
Collections 

6,275,505 
6,594,228 
6,901,886 
7,265,280 
7,602,898 
9,632,047 
9,628,769 
9,653,534 
9,675,410 
9,605,463 

Total 
Collected 

as Percent of 
Current Levy 

99.92% 
99.93% 
99.95% 
99.90% 
99.61% 
99.71% 
99.62% 
99.60% 
99.08% 
97.92% 

Outstanding 
Delinquent 

Taxes 

4,997 
4,815 
3,595 
7,6 15 

29,470 
28,170 
37,088 
38,475 
89,839 

204,458 

Outstanding 
Delinquent 
Taxes as 

Percent of 
Current Levy 

0.0796% 
0.0730% 
0.0521% 
0.1047% 
0.3861% 
0.2916% 
0.3837% 
0.3970% 
0.9200% 
2.0842% 

Taxes are assessed as of January 1 and due on October 1 each year. 
Taxes become delinquent on February 28 of the following year. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Revenue Capacity Information 
Local Sales Tax Collections, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Schedule 9 

Total Local State Total 
Fiscal Remittances Tax Tax Tax 
Year From State Rate* Rate Rate 

Local sales tax is collected by the Tennessee Department of Revenue and 
remitted to the City on a monthly basis. Due to this, category, industry and 
other source information was not readily available. Attempts are being made 
to accumulate this information to include in the report. 

* Sumner County retains half of the local rate for schools. The above 
remittances are the City's half. 

Source: Sales tax reports provided by the State of Tennessee 



CITY O F  HENDERSONlTILLE, TENNESSEE 

Debt Capacity Information 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Schedule 10 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 
General Obligation Capital- Total Percent 

Fiscal Obligation to County Outlay Golf Course Primary of Personal Debt 
Year Population Bonds Schools Notes Bonds Government Income * Per Capita 

Notes: 
Details of the City's debt can be found in the Note 6 in the current financial statements. 
Debt includes related prelliiu~ns and discounts 
* See schedule 15 for personal income information 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Debt Capacity Information 
Ratios of General Obligation Debt Outstanding, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Schedule 11 
Ratio of Net 

Estinlated General Obligation General Obligation General Obligation 
Fiscal Appraised Obligation to County Capital Debt to Debt 
Year Population Value Bonds Schools Notes Total Appraised Value Per Capita 

Note: 
The above general obligation debt includes capital outlay notes since they are required to be paid from the tax base of the City. 
Debt includes related pren~iun~s and discounts 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Debt Capacity Information 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 

Schedule 12 

Jurisdiction 

City of Hendersonville 

Su~nner County 

Total 

General 
Obligation Percentage Amount 

Debt Applicable Applicable 
Outstanding to City* to City* 

* Based upon Assessed Value of Property in: 
County $ 4,162,496,086 

City $ 1,508,488,723 





CITY O F  HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Debt Capacity Information 
Pledged - Revenue Coverage, Last Ten Years 

Scl~eduie 14 
Golf Course E n t e r ~ r i s e  Fund 

Golf course 
Direct** Net Revenue 

Fiscal Gross Operating Available for Debt Service Requirements 
Year Revenues* Expense Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage 

* Includes nonoperating revenues 
** Net of depreciation and amortization 

Note: The General Fund has made annual transfers to the Golf Course Fund to cover shortfalls. 
The debt was paid off in fiscal year 2008. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Demographic and Economic Information 
Demographic and Economic Statistics, Last Ten Years 

Schedule 15 
Per 

Total Capita Education 
Personal Personal Median Level in Years School Unemployment 

Year Population Income Income* Age* of Schooling* Enrollmente* Rate** 

* Department of Labor, Research and Statistics 
** Sumner Board of Education 
Total personal income is calculated using population and per capita personal income information. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Demographic and Economic Information 
Principal Employers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

Schedule 16 

Employer Employees Rank Percentage Employees Rank Percentage 

Hendersonville Medical Center 
Xtend Healthcare 
Walmart 
City of Hendersonville 
McDonalds 
Digital Connections, Inc. 
MGM Windows Company 
Lowes Home Improvement 
Alladin Temp Rite 
Sam's Club 
Ferguson Harbor Inc. 
National Healthcare Center 
ITW Dynatec 
Sholodge 
Betty Machine 

Source: Hendersonville Chamber of Commerce 
Total city employment is not available. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Operating Information 
Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Schedule 17 

Function 

General government 
Personnel 
Central service 
Finance 
Parks 
Codes 
Planning 
Police 
Fire 
Street and public works 
Golf course* 

Total 

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 30 
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

4 4 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 5 
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

* These are leased employees. 
Source: City Personnel Depai-tinent 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Police 
Calls 

Operating Information 
Operating Indicators by FunctionIProgram, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Schedule 18 

Fiscal Year 
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

Fire 
Emergency responses 
Fire calls 

Codes 
Building permits issued 

Disposal service 
Refuse collected* (number of homes) 16,918 16,633 16,325 16,200 16,035 16,035 15,287 15,250 15,000 14,200 

Golf Course 
Rounds played 

Note: Indicators are not available for the general government, personnel, central service, finance and planning functions. 
* Collection service is contsacted out. 
Sources: Various city departments 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, TENNESSEE 

Operating Information 
Capital Assets Statistics by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Schedule 19 

Fiscal Year 
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

Parks 
Acres 
Parks 
Lake access 
Picnic areas 
Tennis courts 
Picnic shelters 
Practice areas 
Soccer fields 
Softball fields 
Football fields 
Baseball fields 
Playgsounds 
Sand volleyball courts (lighted) 
One mile lighted tracMbike trail 
In-line hockey rink 
Disc golf coursre 
Skate park 
Lacrosse field 
Autos and trucks 

Codes 
Autos and trucks 

Police 
Stations 
Vehicles, motorcycles, and boats 

Fire 
Stations 
Fire trucks 
Autos and trucks 
Fire hydrants 
Jet skis 
Fire boat 
Inflatable boat with motor 

Streets and public works 
Streets (miles) 
Street lights 
Traffic signals 

Note: Capital asset statistics are not available(or not applicable) for the general government, personnel, central service, 
finance, planning and disposal service functions. 

Additional statistical information will be added as it becomes available. 
Source: Departments within City Hall 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PEItFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVEIWMENTAUD%TING STANDARDS 

Board of Mayor and Aldermen 
Hendersonville, Tennessee 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Hendersonville, Tennessee, as 
of and for the year ended June 30,2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City 
of Hendersonville, Tennessee's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 5,2014. 

Internal ControQ Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Hendersonville, Tennessee's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Hendersonville, Tennessee's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of City of Hendersonville, Tennessee's internal control. 

A deficieircy in iizter~~al control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, 
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely 
basis. A nlatei-ial wealn~ess is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that 
is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and 
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during 
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 
(14-0 1) 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Hendersonville, Tennessee's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Governl~zerzt Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain other matters that were reported to management in a separate letter dated December 5, 2014. 



Board of Mayor and Aldermen 
Hendersonville, Tennessee 

8 

City of Hendersonville, Tennessee's Response to Findings 
City of Hendersonville's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. City of Hendersonville's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the financial statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

December 5,20 14 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLLANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 

Board of Mayor and Aldermen 
Hendersonville, Tennessee 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited the City of Hendersonville, Tennessee's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described 
in the O m  Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each ofHendersonville, 
Tennessee's major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2014. The City of Hendersonville, Tennessee's major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable 
to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Hendersonville, Tennessee's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB 
Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular 
A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City ofHendersonville, Tennessee's compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Hendersonville, Tennessee's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, City of Hendersonville, Tennessee, complied in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30,2014. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of City of Hendersonville, Tennessee is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing for our audit of 
compliance, we considered City of Hendersonville's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program 
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMJ3 Circular A-133 but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of City of Hendersonville's internal control over compliance. 



Board of Mayor and Aldermen 
Hendersonville, Tennessee 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance, Continued 
A deficiency in inter1101 control over co~~pliarzce exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions to prevent, or detect and 
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A ~naterial weakness 
in ii~telnal control over corlzplialzce is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected, or colrected, on a timely basis. A sig~z$cant defzciency in intenzal control over 
con~pliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those changed with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
wealmesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

December 5,2014 
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City of Hendersonville 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
 

June 30, 2014 
 
I.  Summary of Auditor=s Results 
 

A.   The June 30, 2014 Auditor=s Report on the Financial Statements was an unqualified opinion. 
B.   One significant deficiency in the internal control was disclosed during the audit of the financial 

statements. 
C.   The audit did not disclose any noncompliance which is material to the financial statements. 
D.   No significant deficiency in internal control over major programs were disclosed by the audit. 
E. The June 30, 2014 report on compliance for major programs was an unqualified opinion. 
F. The audit did not disclose any audit finding which is required to be reported under §.510a. 
G. Major Programs – Community Development Block Grant, Small City Disaster Recovery - 

CFDA#14.228, Safe Route to Schools Program, Greenway Program, Transportation Enhancement 
Program and Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Grant, CFDA#20.205, Assistance to Firefighters 
Program CFDA#97.044. 

H.   Type A programs have been distinguished as those programs with expenditures greater than $300,000. 
I. The City of Hendersonville was not considered to be a low risk auditee. 
 

 
II. Findings related to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance with Government  

        Auditing Standards. 
 

Current Year Significant Deficiencies 
 

2014-001 During a prior fiscal year, the City completed construction of a library facility that was funded by 
City and County funds. Records indicate that the “initial intent” was to donate the building to the 
County which operates the facility.  The City continues to perform maintenance on the building and 
to  insure the building. Currently, the two governing bodies have not been able to reach an 
agreement  

   regarding the wording and terms of the transfer of the asset.  The City had not depreciated the 
facility due to the impending transfer.  The County has also recorded the facility as an asset of the 
County.  Due to the elapsed time, the City has determined it necessary to begin depreciating the 
facility and to record a prior period adjustment for the unrecorded depreciation in prior years.  (See 
Note 16 in the notes to the financial statements). 

 
Recommendation:  We recommend formal action be taken by the City to establish the permanent 
status of the facility. 

 
Response:  The City has offered to deed the library to both the City and Sumner County as joint 
owners.  The County only, would carry the asset on its books for depreciation and would be 
responsible for maintaining property insurance on the building.  The County would continue to be 
responsible for the day-to-day operation of the library, with the City to continue to provide 
maintenance support and to maintain the library grounds.  The County is expected to take action on 
the City’s offer in January 2015. 

     
III. Federal Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
 Current Year 
 
 None. 

   
   


